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National Highways Planning Response (NHPR 22-12)
Formal Recommendation to an Application for Planning Permission

From: Regional Director
Operations Directorate
South East Region
National Highways
PlanningSE @nationalhighways.co.uk

To: Linda Giriffiths, Cherwell District Council

CC: transportplanning@dft.qgov.uk
spatialplanning@nationalhighways.co.uk

Council's Reference: 23/01233/0OUT
Location: OS Parcel 4347 East Of Pipal Cottage, Oxford Road, Kidlington.

Proposal: Outline application (with all matters except access reserved for future
consideration) for the demolition of existing buildings and the erection of up to 800
dwellings (Class C3); a two form entry primary school; a local centre (comprising
convenience retailing (not less than 350sgm and up to 500sgm (Class E(a))),
business uses (Class E(g)(i)) and/or financial and professional uses (Class E(c)) up
to 500sgm, café or restaurant use (Class E(b)) up to 200sgm; community building
(Class E and F2); car and cycle parking); associated play areas, allotments, public
open green space and landscaping; new vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access
points; internal roads, paths and communal parking infrastructure; associated works,
infrastructure (including Sustainable Urban Drainage, services and utilities) and
ancillary development. Works to the Oxford Road in the vicinity of the site to include,
pedestrian and cycle infrastructure, drainage, bus stops, landscaping and ancillary
development.

National Highways Ref: NH/23/01013

Referring to the consultation on a planning application dated 15" May 2023 referenced
above, in the vicinity of the A34 and M40 that form part of the Strategic Road Network,
notice is hereby given that National Highways’ formal recommendation is that we:

b) recommend that conditions should be attached to any planning

permission that may be granted (see Annex A — National Highways
recommended Planning Conditions & reasons);
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Highways Act 1980 Section 175B is not relevant to this application.!

This represents National Highways’' formal recommendation and is copied to the
Department for Transport as per the terms of our Licence.

Should the Local Planning Authority not propose to determine the application in
accordance with this recommendation they are required to consult the Secretary of
State for Transport, as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development
Affecting Trunk Roads) Direction 2018, via transportplanning@dft.gov.uk and may
not determine the application until the consultation process is complete.

The Local Planning Authority must also copy any consultation under the 2018
Direction to PlanningSE@nationalhighways.co.uk.

Name: Patrick Blake Position:
Spatial Planner
National Highways
planningSE@nationalhighways.co.uk

Date: 11/09/2023

National Highways
Bridge House, 1 Walnut Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 4LZ
Patrick.blake@nationalhighways.co.uk

1 Where relevant, further information will be provided within Annex A.
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Annex A National Highways’ assessment of the proposed development

National Highways has been appointed by the Secretary of State for Transport as a
strategic highway company under the provisions of the Infrastructure Act 2015 and is
the highway authority, traffic authority and street authority for the Strategic Road
Network (SRN). The SRN is a critical national asset and as such National Highways
works to ensure that it operates and is managed in the public interest, both in respect
of current activities and needs as well as in providing effective stewardship of its long-
term operation and integrity.

National Highways are concerned with proposals that have the potential to impact on
the safe and efficient operation of the SRN, in this case the A34 and M40.

We have been in continued liaison with the applicant’s transport consultant which led
to the applicant’s transport consultants submitting an updated transport technical note
(MG/BT/ITB16565-033 TN dated 16 August 2023) to address National Highways
concerns. We have reviewed the technical note, and while we do not fully endorse the
methodology of the modelling supporting the technical note, we are able to conclude
that the proposals set out in 23/01233/OUT will unlikely have a significant impact to
the safe and efficient SRN. However, to further minimise any potential adverse impacts
to the SRN, particularly during peak periods, we recommend that planning conditions
are included in any planning permission the Local Planning Authority might give to
produce a Travel Plan and a Construction Transport Management Plan. We would be
content that the requirement for the applicant to produce these documents are
alternatively secured as planning obligations in any subsequent S106.

Recommendation

National Highways offers no objection to application (Ref: 23/01233/OUT) subject to
the following planning conditions:

1) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a
Construction Traffic Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with National
Highways).

2) Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, a Travel Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
(in consultation with National Highways).

Reason
To ensure that the A34 and M40 continues to be an effective part of the national

system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 10 of the Highways
Act 1980 and to satisfy the reasonable requirements of road safety.
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Standing advice to the local planning authority

The Climate Change Committee’s 2022 Report to Parliament notes that for the UK to
achieve net zero carbon status by 2050, action is needed to support a modal shift
away from car travel. The NPPF supports this position, with paragraphs 73 and 105
prescribing that significant development should offer a genuine choice of transport
modes, while paragraphs 104 and 110 advise that appropriate opportunities to
promote walking, cycling and public transport should be taken up.

Moreover, the build clever and build efficiently criteria as set out in clause 6.1.4 of
PAS2080 promote the use of low carbon materials and products, innovative design
solutions and construction methods to minimise resource consumption.

These considerations should be weighed alongside any relevant Local Plan policies

to ensure that planning decisions are in line with the necessary transition to net zero
carbon.
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https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/Progress-in-reducing-emissions-2022-Report-to-Parliament.pdf
https://media.a55j14j15-publicinquiry.co.uk/uploads/2021/08/19124926/4.01.46-PAS_2080_Carbon_Management_In_Infrastructure-7.pdf

